
Chief Executive  
Ian Davidson 

www.tendringdc.gov.uk
Minicom: 01255 475566

IAN DAVIDSON, CHIEF EXECUTIVE, TOWN HALL, STATION ROAD, CLACTON-ON-SEA, ESSEX, CO15 1SE.  TELEPHONE (01255) 686868

RESOURCES AND SERVICES 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 

COMMITTEE
DATE: Monday, 17 December 2018

TIME: 9.30 am

VENUE: Connaught Room, Town Hall, Station 
Road, Clacton-on-Sea, CO15 1SE 

MEMBERSHIP:

Councillor Stephenson (Chairman)
Councillor Alexander (Vice-Chairman)
Councillor Amos
Councillor Baker
Councillor Broderick
Councillor M Brown

Councillor Everett
Councillor Miles
Councillor Scott
Councillor Newton
Councillor Steady

Most Council meetings are open to the public and press.

Agendas and Minutes are published on the Council's website 
www.tendringdc.gov.uk. Agendas are available to view five working days 
prior to the meeting date and the Council aims to publish Minutes within 
five working days of the meeting.

Meeting papers can be provided, on request, in large print, in Braille, or 
on disc, tape, or in other languages.

For further details and general enquiries about this meeting, contact Ian 
Ford on 01255 686584.

DATE OF PUBLICATION: Thursday, 6 December, 2018

AG
EN

D
A

Public Document Pack

http://www.tendringdc.gov.uk/
http://www.basildon/


AGENDA

1 Apologies for Absence and Substitutions 

The Committee is asked to note any apologies for absence and substitutions received 
from Members.

2 Minutes of the Special Meeting of the Committee held on 29 November 2018 (Pages 
1 - 4)

To confirm and sign as a correct record the minutes of the special meeting of the 
Committee held on 29 November 2018.

3 Declarations of Interest 

Councillors are invited to declare any Disclosable Pecuniary Interests or Personal 
Interest, and the nature of it, in relation to any item on the agenda.

4 Questions on Notice pursuant to Council Procedure Rule 37 

Subject to providing two working days' notice, a Member of the Committee may ask the 
Chairman of the Committee a question on any matter in relation to which the Council has 
powers or duties which affect the Tendring District and which falls within the terms of 
reference of the Committee.

5 Updated Financial Strategy/Baseline and Initial Budget Proposals 2019/20 (Pages 5 
- 24)

To provide the Committee with the opportunity to comment on the Cabinet’s updated 
Financial Baseline 2019/20 and proposals for an original budget for 2019/20.

The relevant budget report considered by the Cabinet at its meeting held on 14 
December 2018 is attached to this Agenda.

Adjournment of Meeting

This meeting of the Resources and Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee may be 
adjourned to recommence in the Connaught Room, Town Hall, Station Road, CO15 1SE 
at 9.30 am on Thursday, 3 January 2019.



Information for Visitors

FIRE EVACUATION PROCEDURE

There is no alarm test scheduled for this meeting.  In the event of an alarm sounding, please 
calmly make your way out of any of the fire exits in the Connaught Room and follow the exit signs 
out of the building.

Please heed the instructions given by any member of staff and they will assist you in leaving the 
building and direct you to the assembly point.

Please do not re-enter the building until you are advised it is safe to do so by the relevant member 
of staff.

Your calmness and assistance is greatly appreciated.



This page is intentionally left blank



Resources and Services Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee

29 November 2018

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE RESOURCES AND SERVICES OVERVIEW 
AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE,

HELD ON THURSDAY, 29TH NOVEMBER, 2018 AT 7.00 PM
IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER - COUNCIL CHAMBER

Present: Councillors Stephenson (Chairman), Alexander (Vice-Chair), Amos, 
Baker, Broderick, M Brown, Everett, Miles, Scott and Steady

Also Present: Councillor M J D Skeels (Snr) (Leisure and Tourism Portfolio Holder)

In Attendance: Paul Price (Corporate Director (Operational Services)), Anastasia 
Simpson (Head of People, Performance and Projects), Richard 
Barrett (Head of Finance, Revenues and Benefits Services & 
Section 151 Officer) and Debbie Bunce (Legal and Governance 
Administration Officer)

40. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS 

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillor Newton. There was no 
substitute appointed.

41. MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING 

The Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 5 November 2018 were approved 
as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

42. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were none made at this time.

43. QUESTIONS ON NOTICE PURSUANT TO COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE 37 

Subject to providing two working days’ notice, a Member of the Committee could ask the 
Chairman of the Committee a question on any matter in relation to which the Council 
had powers or duties which affected the Tendring District and which fell within the terms 
of reference of the Committee.

There were no such questions on this occasion.

44. TOURISM STRATEGY 

Pursuant to the provisions of Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rule 13 and the 
decision taken by the Committee at its meeting held on 17 September 2018, the 
Committee scrutinise the emerging Tourism Strategy with a view to submitting its 
comments and/or recommendations to the Cabinet. Cabinet would then agree a draft 
Strategy which would go out for further consultation.

The Portfolio Holder for Leisure and Tourism (Councillor Skeels Snr.) and the Corporate 
Director (Operational Services)(Paul Price) attended the meeting.

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



Resources and Services Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee

29 November 2018

The Corporate Director gave a presentation on the emerging Strategy which covered 
the following matters:-

Scope of Strategy
Establishing the Road Map
Background Strategic Planning Process
Taking Stock
Corporate Road Map
Reviewing the Inputs
Vision
Mission Statement
Strategic Goals
Objectives
Tactics
Strategic Positioning
Corporate Social Responsibility and
Recommendations for Success.

Members raised questions and/or concerns which were responded to by the Corporate 
Director and/or the Portfolio Holder.

The Committee noted the contents of the presentation.

45. REPORT OF HEAD OF PERFORMANCE, PEOPLE AND PROJECTS - A.1 - 
RECYCLING - FINAL REPORT OF TASK AND FINISH WORKING GROUP 

The Committee recalled that, at its meeting held on 30 July 2018 it had, inter alia, 
agreed the brief for a Task and Finish Working Group to undertake a review of recycling, 
with a view of finding ways to increase recycling rates within the District. That Group had 
comprised four members of the Committee (Councillors Alexander, Broderick, Everett 
and Scott) with Councillor Everett acting as its Chairman.

It was reported that the Working Group had now completed its review and its detailed 
report was attached at Appendix A to item A.1 of the Report of the Head of People, 
Performance and Projects.

Having considered and discussed the Working Group’s report:-

It was moved by Councillor Scott, seconded by Councillor Miles and:-

RESOLVED that the contents of the Working Group’s report be endorsed and that the 
Committee RECOMMENDS TO CABINET that:

1) The Portfolio Holder writes to every school across Tendring (Primary, Secondary 
and Colleges) to ask them what they do to support the recycling agenda and 
encourage recycling within their individual establishments.

 

2) Any future publications regarding recycling are clear, concise, with hints and tips 
to encourage recycling.

Page 2



Resources and Services Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee

29 November 2018

3)  A cross party working group is established to review the recycling and waste 
needs across the District .This should be undertaken two years prior to any new 
contract.

The Committee thanked Councillor Everett and the Task and Finish group 
members for all their hard work.

46. REPORT OF THE DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE - A.2 - FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 
REPORT - IN-YEAR PERFORMANCE AGAINST THE BUDGET AT END OF 
SEPTEMBER 2018 AND LONG TERM FINANCIAL FORECAST UPDATE 

The Committee had before it a report of the Deputy Chief Executive (Corporate 
Services), which presented it with an overview of the Council’s actual financial position 
against the budget as at the end of September 2018 and which also presented an 
updated forecast on an on-going basis as part of developing the budget for 2019/20 and 
beyond.

The Committee was made aware that, at its meeting held on 9 November 2018, Cabinet 
had considered the same report and had resolved that:-

(1) in respect of the financial performance against the budget at the end of
September 2018:

(a) the position be noted;

(b) the proposed in-year adjustments to the budget, as set out in Appendix H to 
item A.6 of the Report of the Finance and Corporate Resources Portfolio 
Holder be agreed; and

(c) in respect of the Council’s Treasury Management Practices, the aggregate 
amount of money that can be placed overnight with the Council’s bankers be 
increased temporarily from £1.000m to £1.500m for each day the offices are 
closed over the Christmas break.

(2) in respect of the Updated Long Term Forecast revised at the end of September
2018:

(a) updated forecast be agreed; and

(b) the Resources and Service Overview and Scrutiny Committee be consulted 
on the updated position.

The Cabinet report referred to above was attached as Appendix A to item A.2 of the 
Report of the Deputy Chief Executive for the Committee’s consideration.

Members raised questions and/or concerns which were responded to by the Head of 
Finance, Revenues and Benefits Services & Section 151 Officer (Richard Barrett).

Having considered and discussed the report:-

Page 3



Resources and Services Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee

29 November 2018

It was moved by Councillor Stephenson, seconded by Councillor Scott and:-

RESOLVED that – 

(a) the contents of the report be noted; and

(b) the Committee COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDS TO CABINET that:-

1) The Committee requests that the Section 151 Officer undertakes a review of the 
digital transformation business case in terms of estimated costs and planned 
savings and the performance against the budget to date, with an update to be 
provided in the quarter 3 Corporate Budget Monitoring Report 2018/19.

2) The Committee requests that the Head of IT and Corporate Resilience attends 
the Resources and Services Committee on 11 February 2019 to discuss digital 
transformation, as part of the review of the Performance Report 2018/19, third 
quarter.

The meeting was declared closed at 10.21 pm 

Chairman

Page 4



 

Key Decision Required: Yes In the Forward Plan: Yes 

 
CABINET 

 
14 DECEMBER 2018 

REPORT OF FINANCE AND CORPORATE RESOURCE PORTFOLIO HOLDER 

 
A.6 UPDATED FINANCIAL FORECAST / BUDGET 2019/20  
 (Report prepared by Richard Barrett) 
 
PART 1 – KEY INFORMATION 
 

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

To enable Cabinet to consider the updated financial forecast for 2019/20 for consultation with 
the Resources and Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  

  

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 As part of maintaining a ‘live’ forecast, further updates to the position for 2019/20 have 
been made since the financial forecast was last considered by Cabinet on 9 November 
2018. 
 

 Changes to the in-year budget (2018/19) are not included within this report as they are 
now reported via the quarterly financial performance reports presented during the year.  
 

 At this stage of the budget process, there is a net surplus of £0.002m forecast in 
2019/20, an overall change of £0.511m compared with the £0.509m deficit reported to 
Cabinet on 9 November 2018. The long term forecast therefore remains on target. 
  

 It is important to highlight that the 2019/20 budget includes an estimated collection fund 
surplus of £0.710m. Although this is an on-going item in the budget it is reviewed each 
year based on in-year collection performance and can therefore only be deemed a one-
off ‘saving’ in 2019/20. Although the amount is available to support the 2019/20 budget, 
if this was excluded from the forecast, there would be a budget deficit of £0.708m for 
2019/20.  
  

 Although subject to potential changes to the forecast over the remaining budget setting 
period, the current forecasted surplus of £0.002m will be paid into the Forecast Risk 
Fund. 
 

 Any necessary changes emerging from the detailed Local Government Finance 
Settlement will be reported directly at the meeting if received in-time, otherwise they will 
be included in the figures that will be presented to Cabinet in January 2019 when it 
considers the final budget proposals after consultation with the Resources and Services 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 
 

 Once the final position for 2019/20 is determined, the remaining years of the 10 year 
forecast will be revised, set against the revised 2019/20 position and will be reported to 
members later in the budget setting process.  
 
 

 
Page 5

Agenda Item 5



 

RECOMMENDATION(S) 

It is recommended that Cabinet: 
 
a) Thanks the Resources and Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee for the work 

they have done to date in reviewing the forecast as it has developed and agrees the 
comments of the Finance and Corporate Resources Portfolio Holder in response to 
issues raised by the Committee as set out in this report; 

 
b) agrees the updated Financial Forecast 2019/20 as set out in this report and 

Appendices and; 
  

c) requests the Resources and Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s 
comments on this latest financial forecast for 2019/20. 

  

 
PART 2 – IMPLICATIONS OF THE DECISION 
 

DELIVERING PRIORITIES 

The forecasting and budget setting process will have direct implications for the Council's ability 
to deliver on its objectives and priorities. At its heart, the 10 year approach to the forecast 
seeks to establish a sound and sustainable budget year on year through maximising income 
whilst limiting reductions in services provided to residents, business and visitors. 
 

FINANCE, OTHER RESOURCES AND RISK 

Finance and other resources 
The financial implications are set out in the body of the report. 
 
Although the availability of financial resources is a key component in the delivery of services 
there will also need to be appropriate input of other resources such as staffing, assets and IT.  
 
Risk 
There are significant risks associated with forecasting such as cost pressures, inflation and 
changes to other assumptions that form part of the financial planning process. There are a 
number of areas that could lead to additional expenditure being incurred, such as: - 
 

 Economic environment / instability; 

 Emergence of additional cost pressures; 

 Changes to the local authority funding mechanisms such as the Government’s fairer 
funding review that is proposed; 

 New legislation placing unfunded duties on the Council or reducing the level of the 
Council’s core funding; 

 Local or national emergency; 

 Income is less than that budgeted for, including business rate income retained 
locally. 

 
However the forecast is based on relatively conservative estimates with no optimistic bias 
included.  
 
As previously discussed, the Council’s ability to financially underwrite the forecast is an 
important element of the 10 year plan. As with any forecast, some elements of income and 
expenditure will be different to that forecasted. It is fair to say that many may offset each other 
over the longer term. However, there are two important aspects to how this will be managed. 
 

Page 6



 

1) To date it is estimated that £2.290m will have been set aside by the end of 2018/19 
within the Forecast Risk Fund to support the budget in future years. This is more than 
previous forecasts and excludes the additional contribution of £0.717m to fund initiatives 
aimed at supporting the long term forecast, which is also being held in the reserve. This 
money is available to be drawn down if the timings within the forecast differ in reality 
and the net position is unfavourable compared to the forecast in any one year. 
  

2) The forecast will remain ‘live’ and be responsive to changing circumstances and it will 
be revised on an on-going basis. If unfavourable issues arise that cannot be mitigated 
via other changes within the forecast then the forecast will be adjusted and mitigating 
actions taken. Actions to respond will, therefore, need to be considered but can be 
taken over a longer time period where possible. In such circumstance the Council may 
need to consider ‘topping’ up the funding mentioned in 1) above if required in the early 
years of the forecast. This may impact on the ability to invest money elsewhere but will 
need to demonstrate that its use is sustainable in the context of the ten year forecast.    

 
The 2019/20 position includes net savings of £0.328m which is slightly ahead of the annual 
target of £0.300m. This figure will need to remain flexible and react as a counterbalance to 
other emerging issues as it is accepted that this figure may need to be revised up or down over 
the life of the forecast. 
 
It is important to deliver against the forecast in the early years to continue to build confidence 
in the revised approach. This will, therefore, continue to need robust input from members and 
officers where decisions may be required in the short term or on a cash flow basis.  
 
Another aspect to this approach is the ability to ‘flex’ the delivery of services rather than cut 
services. As would be the case with our own personal finances, if we cannot afford something 
this year because of a change in our income, we can potentially put it off until next year. There 
is a practical sense behind this approach as we could flex the delivery of a service one year 
but increase it again when the forecast allows. 
 
In addition to the above it is important to note that the Council has already prudently set aside 
money for significant risks in the forecast such as £1.609m (NDR Resilience Reserve) and 
£1.100m (Benefits Reserve), which can be taken into account during the period of the forecast 
if necessary. The Council also holds £4.000m in uncommitted reserves which supports its core 
financial position.  
 

LEGAL 

The arrangements for setting and agreeing a budget and for the setting and collection of 
council tax are defined in the Local Government Finance Act 1992. The previous legislation 
defining the arrangements for charging, collecting and pooling of Business Rates was 
contained within the Local Government Finance Act 1988. These have both been amended as 
appropriate to reflect the introduction of the Local Government Finance Act 2012. 
 
The Local Government Finance Act 2012 provided the legislative framework for the 
introduction of the Rates Retention Scheme and the Localisation of Council Tax Support. 
 
The Calculation of Council Tax Base Regulations 2012 set out arrangements for calculation of 
the council tax base following implementation of the Local Council Tax Support Scheme. The 
new arrangements mean that there are now lower tax bases for the district council, major 
preceptors and town and parish councils.  
 
The Localism Act 2011 introduced legislation providing the right of veto for residents on 
excessive council tax increases. 

Page 7



 

 
Under Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003, the Chief Finance Officer (S151 Officer) 
must report to Council, as part of the budget process, on the robustness of estimates and 
adequacy of reserves. The proposed approach can deliver this requirement if actively 
managed and will be an issue that remains ‘live’ over the course of the forecast period and will 
be revisited in future reports to members as the budget develops. 
 
In respect of special expenses that form part of the budget setting process, expenditure is 
classed as a Special Expense it if satisfies the requirements of the Local Government Finance 
Act 1992, Section 35. The only category relevant to this Council is contained within Section 
35(2)(d) relating to concurrent functions with Parish and Town Councils. Under the Local 
Government Finance Act 1992, the Council must identify as its Special Expense, proposed 
expenditure on those functions which the Council performs in part of the district but which 
Parish or Town Councils perform elsewhere in the District. If, in the Council’s view, a special 
expense should properly be charged over the whole of the district’s area, the Council may pass 
an express resolution to this effect (known as a contrary resolution). 

 
In order for expenditure to be a Special Expense, there are two conditions that must be 
fulfilled: 

 
1. Expenditure is estimated to be incurred by the District Council in the whole or part of its 

area on the provision of a function; 
 

2. Expenditure on the provision of the same function is to be incurred by at least one 
parish/town council elsewhere in the district. 

 
The proposals set out in this report are in accordance with the Council’s budget and policy 
framework. 
 

OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
Consideration has been given to the implications of the proposed decision in respect of the following and 
any significant issues are set out below. 
Crime and Disorder / Equality and Diversity / Health Inequalities / Area or Ward affected / 
Consultation/Public Engagement. 

 
There are no other implications that significantly impact on the financial forecast. However, the 
ability of the Council to appropriately address these issues will be strongly linked to its ability to 
fund relevant schemes and projects and determination of the breadth and standard of service 
delivery to enable a balanced budget to be agreed. 
 
An impact assessment will be undertaken as part of any separate budget decisions such as 
those that will be required to deliver the necessary savings. 
 
Special expenses are based on the principle of ensuring there is equality across the district in 
levying Council Tax to residents based on services and facilities provided by Town and Parish 
Councils in specific areas that are also provided by the District Council.  
 

 

Page 8



 

PART 3 – SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 

BACKGROUND 

Following the establishment of a longer term approach to the budget setting process that was 
agreed last year, the forecast is updated on an on-going basis with the most recent position (at 
the end of September 2018) reported to Cabinet at its 9 November 2018 meeting and it was 
resolved that: 
 

 (1)       in respect of the financial performance against the budget at the end of September 2018: 
  

(a)    the position be noted; 
  

(b)   the proposed in-year adjustments to the budget, as set out in Appendix H to item A.6 
of the Report of the Finance and Corporate Resources Portfolio Holder be agreed; 
and 

  
(c)    in respect of the Council’s Treasury Management Practices, the aggregate amount of 

money that can be placed overnight with the Council’s bankers be increased 
temporarily from £1.000m to £1.500m for each day the offices are closed over the 
Christmas break. 

  
(2)       in respect of the Updated Long Term Forecast revised at the end of September 2018: 
  

(a)    updated forecast be agreed; and 
  

(b)   the Resources and Service Overview and Scrutiny Committee be consulted on the 
updated position. 

 
The Resources and Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee considered the report referred 
to above at its meeting on 29 November 2018, with their comments set out below along with 
the comments from the Finance and Corporate Resources Portfolio Holder: 
 

Resources and Services Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee’s Comments 

Response of the 
Finance and Corporate 
Resources Portfolio 
Holder 

The Committee requests that the Section 151 Officer undertakes 

a review of the digital transformation business case in terms of 

estimated costs and planned savings and the performance 

against the budget to date, with an update to be provided in the 

quarter 3 Corporate Budget Monitoring Report 2018/19. 

 

Noted and supported 

The Committee requests that the Head of IT attends the 

Resources and Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 

11 Feb 2019 to discuss digital transformation, as part of the 

review of the Performance Report 2018/19, third quarter. 

 

Noted and supported 

 

 

UPDATED FINANCIAL FORECAST 2019/20 

The forecast has been subject to a number of changes since it was last considered by Cabinet 
at its 9 November 2018 meeting. Appendix A sets out an updated forecast for 2019/20 that 

Page 9



 

reflects these changes which deliver an overall surplus of £0.002m. 
  
Work remains on-going as part of the continuing development of the budget which will need to 
react to a number of issues such as any announcements from the Government as part of the 
annual local government financial settlement process. Any changes will be reported to 
members as they arise throughout the remainder of the budget setting process and will be 
included in the final budget proposals to be considered by Cabinet in January before 
recommendations are made to Council.  
 
The following table provides a commentary on the changes to the initial forecast set out in 
Appendix A (excludes items where there has been no change to the relevant line of the 
forecast considered by Cabinet on 9 November 2018): 
 

Item in the Forecast Change since 
forecast was  

considered on 
9 November 

2018 

Comments 

Underlying Funding Growth  

Growth in business 
rates - Inflation 

Increase in 
Income of 
£0.018m 

 

This reflects the most up to date inflation 
forecast and increases income by a total of 
£0.110m compared with 2018/19. 
 

Growth in business 
rates / council tax - 
general property 
growth 
 

Increase in 
Income of 
£0.446m 

 

Reflects the latest property base estimates for 
2019/20 with total additional income of 
£0.576m forecast compared with 2018/19. 
 

Collection Fund 
Surpluses b/fwd 

Increase in 
Income of 
£0.007m 

 

This reflects the latest collection fund position 
for the year with the total income figure 
estimated at £0.710m. This is a one-off 
increase as the collection fund surplus or 
deficit is updated each year based on actual 
collection performance etc. 
 

   

Net Cost of Services and Other Adjustments 

Inflation - Employee 
Costs (including 
annual review 
adjustments) 
 
 

Increase in 
forecasted 

expenditure of 
£0.027m 

 

This reflects the latest salary forecasts which 
include restructures implemented so far to 
date.  
 

Inflation - Other Increase in 
forecasted 

expenditure of 
£0.114m 

 

This primarily reflects the ‘rebased’ cost of the 
Waste Collection, Recycling and Street 
Cleansing Contract as part of the extension of 
the existing contract. The actual RPI increases 
across 2018/19 and projected into 2019/20 
have been higher than those previously 
anticipated. 
 

Specific Changes in 
Use of Reserves 

Increase net 
use of reserves 

– £0.009m 

This reflects a number of issues such as the 
use of £0.120m from the election reserve to 
meet the associated cost of the district Page 10



 

elections in May 2019 along with the removal 
of the one-off increase of £0.100m to the big 
society budget 
 

On-going net savings Net Savings of 
£0.328m have 

been included in 
the 2019/20 

budget. 
 

(£0.028m 
greater  than the 

allowance of 
£0.300m 

included in the 
initial forecast) 

 

The figure reported to Cabinet on 9 November 
2018 as part of the updated long term forecast 
was £0.279m. This has increased to £0.328m 
with the full list of net savings set out in 
Appendix B.  

Unmitigated Cost 
Pressures 

Unavoidable 
cost pressures 

of £0.126m 
have been 

included in the 
2019/20 budget. 

 
(the total 

amount included 
in the budget is 
£0.024m less 

than the 
allowance of 

£0.150m 
included in the 

long term 
forecast) 

 

The full list of cost pressures is set out in 
Appendix C. Only those that are deemed to be 
unavoidable have been included at this stage, 
which recognises that the total cost of the 
items identified will rise from £0.126m in 
2019/20 to £0.193m from 2020/21.  
 
As set out within the appendix, all other items 
are subject to further review including those 
that are optional but support the delivery of 
Council priorities.  
 
In respect of those items that are optional but 
support council priorities, consideration is 
being given to funding them from the 
anticipated benefit from being a member of the 
business rates pool in 2018/19. This would be 
on a one-off basis but would enable the 
activities to continue into 2019/20 and provide 
the time necessary to consider how they can 
potentially be included on an on-going basis 
via adjustments elsewhere in the long term 
forecast. 
 
Work therefore remains on-going throughout 
the remainder of the budget setting process to 
investigate the funding options further, and 
comments from the Resources and Services 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee would be 
welcomed on the cost pressure list as part of 
the associated budget consultation process. 
 

Other Adjustments Reduction in 
forecasted net 
expenditure of 

£0.120m 
 

This line in the forecast recognises other 
changes that do not necessarily fit elsewhere 
in the table within Appendix A. 
  
Along with some minor budget amendments, 
Page 11



 

the figure primarily reflects changes to the 
recharges between the GF and the HRA. 
 

The above position excludes changes to indirect costs such as internal recharges within the GF and technical accounting 
adjustments that do not have an overall net impact on the budget.  

 
As set out in Appendix A, taking the above adjustments into account in the forecast results in 
an estimated surplus for 2019/20 of £0.002m, compared with the forecasted deficit of £0.509m 
considered by Cabinet at its 9 November 2018 meeting.  
 
Reserves will be adjusted as necessary in line with the above changes to the forecast and will 
be included on this basis within the final budget proposals that will be presented to Full Council 
in February 2019. 
 
The mitigation of cost pressures continues to form an important element of the long term 
forecast. To date, significant cost pressures have been avoided by identifying alternative 
options / approaches such as those associated with the Waste, Recycling and Street 
Cleansing contract, accepting a higher excess level on some insurance policies along with the 
restructuring of services to react to changes in associated income such as the expected 
reduction in housing benefit administration grant receivable from the Government that reflects 
the roll-out of universal credit. 
 

 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION  

Council Tax Levy 2019/20 
Based on a proposed £5 increase, the Council Tax for a band D property would be £167.64 in 
2019/20. The updated property base is 47,455.2, an increase of 715.7 over the 2018/19 figure 
of 46,739.5. 
 
The ability to increase Council Tax by £5 remains subject to confirmation from the 
Government. This is expected to be confirmed within the Local Government Financial 
Settlement which is expected shortly. 
 
If such an increase is not permissible and it is necessary to revert back to an increase of 
1.99%, on-going income would be reduced by £0.082m, which would need corresponding 
savings to be identified over the life of the forecast. 
 
Locally Retained Business Rates 
As set out above, an increase in income is forecast due to an inflationary uplift and an 
increased property base.  
 
The Council has agreed to join a revised Essex Business Rates Pool in 2019/2020, which has 
also bid to become a pilot area for 75% retention of business rates. No income is currently 
included in the forecast for either being a pool member or being successful in the bid for pilot 
status. It is expected that the Government will announce pool / pilots for 2019/20 shortly and 
once received the necessary adjustments to the forecast will be considered. 
 
Fees and Charges  
Similarly to previous years, Departments have been asked to review their fees and charges on 
an individual basis as changes may need to be made to meet specific aims or strategic 
objectives or in some cases in response to external factors such as market forces.  
 
Detailed fees and charges will form part of the final budget proposals to Cabinet in January 
and Full Council in February, with proposed fees and charges set against the following key 

Page 12



 

principles: 
 

 general inflationary increases or lower where appropriate 

 amounts rounded for ease of application, which may result in a slightly above inflation 
increase. 

 on a cost recovery basis as necessary 

 reflect statutory requirements. 

 increases where market conditions allow 
 

 

GENERAL FUND CAPITAL PROGRAMME  

As highlighted last year, only 2 schemes are included in the base budget on a recurring basis 
each year and these relate to the on-going cost of replacing the Council’s core IT infrastructure 
along with disabled facilities grants. £0.100m and £0.757m have therefore been included 
within the 2019/20 Capital Programme respectively. The investment in IT core infrastructure is 
funded by a direct revenue contribution, with disabled facilities grants funded by estimated 
external grant funding from ECC. 
 
The only other changes to the Capital Programme reflect the reprofiling of schemes as set out 
in the quarterly financial performance reports considered by Cabinet earlier in the year. 
 
The capital programme incorporating the above changes will be included within the final 
budget proposals that will be considered by Cabinet in January before being presented to Full 
Council in February.    
 

 

SPECIAL EXPENSES 2019/20 

Special expenses amounts cannot be finalised until the budget for the year has been 
completed and the associated technical adjustments reflected in the budget. Therefore at this 
stage of the budget process it is more practical to review the principles against which the 
special expenses will be calculated rather than the specific amounts themselves, which are 
subject to change as the budget develops.   
 
It is not proposed to make any changes to the principles behind the calculation of special 
expenses with the key principles remaining the same as in 2018/19 as set out below: 
 

 A deminimus amount of £0.025m is applied to determine which expenses are excluded 
from the special expenses calculations; 

 Any allocation to specific areas less than £0.001m is excluded for the purposes of 
determining special expenses. 
 

Although subject to the final budget calculations, expenses to be allocated as special expenses 
are likely to remain as in 2018/19 and apply to open space and recreation area costs. 

 
For completeness, the underlying technical background to the calculation of special expenses 
is set out below:   
 
Certain expenditure referred to as ‘Special Expenses’ is regarded as being chargeable to only 
certain parts of the district.  The rest of the Council’s expenditure is regarded as being 
chargeable over the whole district and is referred to as ‘General Expenses’. Local authorities 
have the power to pass a resolution in respect of any particular Special Expense to the effect 
that the amount of that expense should be charged across the whole district.  This is referred 
to as the contrary resolution. 

Page 13



 

 
In exercising this power the Council also has to consider how the burden of Special Expenses 
will be charged to the taxpayers of the district. 
 
Information from parish/town councils 
 

Each year parish councils complete a return to identify changes to the services they undertake  
 

Consideration of Determining the Contrary Resolution 
In judging whether the contrary resolution should be passed in respect of any special 
expenses, the following matters are relevant: 
 
i) Whether in respect of this Council’s expenditure the function is to be provided generally 

for the whole district or is to be restricted to a part or parts of the district? 
 
ii) To what extent, if any, are restrictions placed on any part of the district as to the 

accessibility of the function? 
 
iii) The use of the facility/activity to which the Special Expense relates. 
 
These matters must each be considered and a view taken as to whether it would be 
appropriate to pass the contrary resolution in respect of some of the budgeted expenditure on 
Special Expenses. 
 
In determining how the burden of special items should be charged to the taxpayer of the 
district, the following matters need to be considered. 

 
i) Where is the facility situated? 
 
ii) Who uses it? 
 
iii) How much expenditure is to be spent in the various parts of the district? 

 
Wherever possible the Council aims to charge the cost incurred in performing a function in a 
part of the district, to the taxpayers of that part.  In assessing the area of benefit to which a 
function identified as a special expense relates, parish boundaries have been treated as the 
appropriate areas.   
 
The tax base for apportioning Special Expenses to each parish and the unparished area is that 
used to determine the Council’s overall Council Tax base. 
 

 

ANNUAL MINIMUM REVENUE PROVISION POLICY STATEMENT 

Where relevant, figures included in the 2019/20 budget are based on the Policy Statement 
agreed by Council at their 27 November 2018 meeting which is as follows:  
 
In accordance with the Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (England) 
(Amendment) Regulations 2008, the Council’s policy for the calculation of MRP for 
2019/20 shall be the Capital Financing Requirement Method for supported borrowing 
and the Asset Life (equal instalment) Method for prudential borrowing. 
 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS FOR THE DECISION 

Working papers held in Accountancy 
Page 14



 

 

APPENDICES 

Appendix A    Updated Financial Forecast 2019/20 
Appendix B    Updated Net Savings Items 2019/20 
Appendix C    Updated Cost Pressure Summary 2019/20 
 
 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A

UPDATED FINANCIAL FORECAST 2019/20 

Updated 

Forecast 

(Cabinet 9 

November 2018)

Updated 

Forecast 

(Cabinet 14 

December 2018)

Change

2019/20 2019/20

£m £m £m

Underlying Funding Growth in the Budget

Council Tax Increase 1.99% (0.151) (0.151) 0.000

Council Tax increase by £5 (amounts set out are over and above 1.99% above) (0.082) (0.082) 0.000

Growth in Business Rates - Inflation (0.092) (0.110) (0.018)

Growth in Business Rates / Council Tax - general property growth (0.130) (0.576) (0.446)

Collection Fund Surpluses b/fwd (0.703) (0.710) (0.007)

(1.158) (1.629) (0.471)

Net Cost of Services and Other Adjustments

Reduction in RSG 0.648 0.648 0.000

Remove one-off items from prior year (0.112) (0.112) 0.000

Remove one-off items from prior year - Collection Fund Surplus 0.652 0.652 0.000

Inflation - Employee Costs (including annual review adjustments) 0.608 0.635 0.027

Inflation - Other 0.107 0.221 0.114

First / Second / Third year impact of PFH WP Savings (0.115) (0.115) 0.000

LCTS Grant to Parish Council's (0.055) (0.055) 0.000

Specific Changes in Use of Reserves (0.060) (0.069) (0.009)

On-going savings / increases in income (0.300) (0.328) (0.028)

Unmitigated Cost Pressures 0.150 0.126 (0.024)

Other Adjustments 0.000 (0.120) (0.120)

1.523 1.483 (0.040)

Net Total 0.365 (0.146) (0.511)

Add back General Use of Reserves in Prior Year to Balance the Budget 0.144 0.144 0.000

Net Budget Position 0.509 (0.002) (0.511)

Use of Forecast Risk Fund to support the Net Budget Position (0.509) 0.002 0.511

Use of Forecast Risk Fund 

Estimated Outturn b/fwd from prior years (2.290) (2.290)

Contribution from / (to) reserve 0.509 (0.002)

Planned additional contributions generated in year (0.500) (0.500)

Balance to Carry Forward (2.281) (2.792)

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX B

INITIAL NET SAVINGS ITEMS 2019/20

On-going or 

One-Off

2019/20

£ Comments

Increased Income - 

Investments
On-going 100,000 

Based on performance to date and interest rate 

forecasts, it is expected that this level of additional 

income can be achieved from the Council's 

treasury management activities over the course of 

the year. 

Reduction in Expenditure - 

Telephony 
On-going 15,000 

The on-going investment in IT and digital 

transformation has enabled this reduction in 

expenditure to be secured.

Increased Income - Street 

Naming and Numbering Fee 

Income

On-going 30,000 

Against the context of current and historic 

performance, this level of income is expected to 

continue into 2019/20 and beyond

Reduction in Expenditure - 

Staff reorganisation
On-going 19,000 

This money has become available as part of 

finalising a number of restructures with this amount 

being the on-going impact.

Reduction in Expenditure - 

External Audit Fees
On-going 15,000 

This represents the expected reduction in fees 

following the External Audit tender and 

appointment process undertaken by the associated 

independent body.

Reduction in Expenditure - 

Staff Vacancy Provision
On-going 100,000 

It is proposed to increase the existing vacancy 

provision from £200k to £300k to reflect a more up 

to date staff turnover rate. The new amount 

represents approximately 2% of total payroll with a 

staff turnover rate of 8% (slightly lower than 

existing rates) with average vacancy periods of 2 to 

3 months per vacated post during the year.

NEW ITEM IDENTIFIED 

SINCE CABINET REPORT 

9 NOVEMBER 2018

Reduction in Expenditure - 

Minimum Revenue Provision

On-going 30,000 

Debt is reducing year on year as it is repaid, 

therefore the minimum revenue provision, which is 

the amont set aside to repay debt, has reduced.

NEW ITEM IDENTIFIED 

SINCE CABINET REPORT 

9 NOVEMBER 2018 

Reduction in Expenditure - 

Pension Added Years / 

Financial Strain

On-going 19,000 

This reflects reducing contributions year on year 

relating to prior year pension adjustments / 

commitments.

Total 328,000 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX C

UPDATED COST PRESSURE SUMMARY 2019/20

Comments

2019/20

£

2020/21

£

2021/22

£

2022/23

£

2023/24 

onwards

£ Comments

Unavoidable items

Included in updated 

forecast

REVENUE - Operational Services - 

Public Realm - Expiry of Commuted sums 

from developers to support open space 

maintenance etc.

25,000 33,500 33,500 33,500 33,500 

Four areas of open space 

including a significant 

country park would not be 

able to be maintained to 

adequate standards.

Included in updated 

forecast

(the amount has been 

subject to  a reduction 

due to underlying 

growth in Council Tax 

which has partly offset 

the reduction in the 

sharing agreement 

percentage

REVENUE - Corporate Services - 

Finance, Revenues and Benefits - 

Reduced income from the Council Tax 

Sharing Agreement with the major 

preceptors

59,850 118,620 118,620 118,620 118,620 

The major preceptors have 

confirmed that they will be 

reducing the percentage 

they 'share-back' with 

district Council's within 

Essex (reducing from 16% 

to 14% in 2019/20 and to 

12% in 2020/21). 

Included in updated 

forecast

REVENUE - Operational Services - 

Environmental Services - Waste, 

Recycling and Street Cleansing Contract 

Costs

41,000 41,000 41,000 41,000 41,000 

This reflects the slightly 

higher annual contract costs 

associated with the 

extension to the Waste, 

Recycling and Street 

Cleansing Contract as set 

out in the report to Cabinet 

in March 2018. 

125,850 193,120 193,120 193,120 193,120 Total of Unavoidable Items

P
age 21



Items to be mitigated via reductions elsewhere within the overall budget
Not Included in 

updated forecast - 

The Service is 

requested to identify 

corresponding 

reductions elsewhere 

within their overall 

budget

REVENUE - Operational Services - 

Building and Engineering Services - 

Removing build up of sand on promenades

5,000 5,250 5,500 5,750 6,000 

New beach levels along 

Clacton to Holland seafront 

have resulted in sand being 

deposited along the 

promenade which needs to 

be cleared on a frequent 

basis.

Not Included in 

updated forecast - 

The Service is 

requested to identify 

corresponding 

reductions elsewhere 

within their overall 

budget

REVENUE - Corporate Services - People, 

Performance and Projects - 

Apprenticeship Levy

9,000 9,000 9,000 9,000 9,000 

The required levy is 

calculated as a percentage 

of total payroll costs which 

have significantly increased 

due to the pay award in 

2018/19 and 2019/20.

Not Included in 

updated forecast at 

this stage - The 

Service is investigating 

the possibility of 

funding the cost of this 

item from the annual 

disabled facilities grant 

receivable from ECC.

REVENUE - Operational Services - 

Housing - Grant Coordinator Post
26,800 26,800 26,800 26,800 26,800 

To bring onto the permanent 

establishment the Disabled 

Facilities Grant Coordinator 

post (currently 2 year fixed 

term post) to support the 

effective delivery of this 

service to residents.

40,800 41,050 41,300 41,550 41,800 

Items that can possibly be delayed until there is a surplus within the long term forecast

REVENUE - Operational Services - 

Public Realm - Milton Road Car park 

maintenance

23,000 23,000 23,000 23,000 23,000 

This item compliments the 

capital item below by 

increasing the on-going 

maintance budget to meet 

future expenditure.

CAPITAL - Operational Services - Public 

Realm - Milton Road Car park repairs
150,000 0 0 0 0 

This represents the 

estimated increase in costs 

of repairing the car park 

over and above the £250k 

already in the capital 

programme for this project.

Not Included in 

updated forecast at 

this stage - In light of 

the increase in costs, 

the business case will 

be revisited to identify 

the options for this site.

Total of Mitigated Items

P
age 22



Not Included in 

updated forecast - 

The current investment 

of £170k already within 

the Capital Progamme 

would provide capacity 

for the short / medium 

term so this item will 

be reviewed again as 

part of the forecast in 

future years.

CAPITAL - Operational Services - Public 

Realm - To extend Clacton Cemetery
200,000 50,000 0 0 0 

This cost is over and above 

the £170k already within the 

Capital Programme for this 

project but this would secure 

capacity for the foreseeable 

future

373,000 73,000 23,000 23,000 23,000 

Optional Items Delivering against Council Priorities

Subject to further 

consideration

REVENUE - Operational Services - 

Customer and Commercial Services - 

Staff Restructure Costs

47,200 47,200 47,200 47,200 47,200 

A service restructure is 

proposed to support the 

wider transformation project.

Subject to further 

consideration

REVENUE - Operational Services - Sport 

and Leisure -  Clacton Airshow
60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000 

To support the increasing 

cost of the show, including 

the night flight display.

Subject to further 

consideration

REVENUE - Operational Services - Sport 

and Leisure -  Sea and Beach Festival
20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 

To build this event into the 

ongoing base budget rather 

than it being a one-off item 

each year.

Subject to further 

consideration

REVENUE - Operational Services - Sport 

and Leisure -  'Love Clacton' TV advert
25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 

To build this activity into the 

ongoing base budget rather 

than it being a one-off item 

each year.

Subject to further 

consideration

REVENUE - Planning and Regeneration - 

Regeneration - Contribution to Mental 

Health Hub

23,000 23,000 23,000 23,000 23,000 

To build this activity into the 

ongoing base budget rather 

than it being a one-off item 

each year.

Subject to further 

consideration 

NEW item added since 

the Updated Financial 

Forecast was reported 

to Cabinet on 9 

November 2018

REVENUE - Office of Chief Executive - 

Establishment of an Anti-Social Behaviour 

Officer

30,600 30,600 0 0 0 

To establish a two year fixed 

term post responding to 

related issues within the 

district.

Total of Items that can possibly be delayed

P
age 23



Subject to further 

consideration

CAPITAL - Operational Services - Public 

Realm - Refurbishment of toilets at Weeley 

Crematorium and Cemeteries Clacton

100,000 0 0 0 0 

Refurbishment / upgrading 

required to minimise 

external competition and to 

ensure assets are 

maintained to a high 

standard reducing future 

maintenance costs.

Subject to further 

consideration

CAPITAL - Operational Services - Public 

Realm - To provide additional security 

measures at Bath House Meadow

20,000 0 0 0 0 

This proposal will reduce 

unauthorised incursions in 

the car park, open space 

and play areas by a number 

of groups including youths 

at night in vehicles. This 

proposal will improve 

security and reduce ongoing 

maintenance costs.

325,800 205,800 175,200 175,200 175,200 

865,450 512,970 432,620 432,870 433,120 TOTAL ALL ITEMS

Total of optional items that deliver against council priorities

P
age 24


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Special Meeting of the Committee held on 29 November 2018
	5 Updated Financial Strategy/Baseline and Initial Budget Proposals 2019/20
	A6 Appendix A
	A6 Appendix B
	A6 Appendix C


